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deprivation hearing, and would not adequately serve as a "name-clearing hearing." The District 

has, for the second time, claimed that Fulmer is an employee-at-will who is not entitled to due 

process - a position contrary to state law. 

156. As a result of the conduct set forth in the previous paragraphs, Fulmer has 

incurred economic damages in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00), has 

lost benefits in an excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00), has incurred miscellaneous 

expenses in an amount in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), and has incurred legal 

fees in an amount in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00). 

157. These economic losses are continuing in nature and will be proven at trial. 

158. In addition, Fuhner has suffered in his reputation based upon the baseless 

allegations and charges filed against him by the defendants, in conjunction with his tennination. 

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

42 U.S.C. §1983 - 2012 and 2014 Suspensions 

159. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

160. Fulmer was at all times relevant to this Complaint the duly appointed Fire Chief 

of the West Licking Fire Chief and had a property interest in that position as provided for by 

R.C. §505.38. 

161. In 2012, Myers, Van Buren, Fox, Denton and McGrady deprived Fulmer of his 

property interest without due process of law under color of law in violation of the due clause of 

the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. §1983. 

162. Specifically, these Defendants suspended Fulmer from his position from the 

period of May 2012 to November 2012 and from February 2014 through June 2014 without 
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providing him notice of any a11eged violations, the timely opportunity for a hearing with respect 

to the suspension, and failed to provide him with a timely post-deprivation hearing. 

163. R.C. §§ 124.388 and 733.37, and the rules and regulations of the District provide 

mandates for placing an employee on suspension or administrative leave. 

164. The District violated the provisions of the Revised Code and its internal 

regulations by failing to provide any basis for the leave and providing any other means by which 

to contest the bases for the leave. 

165. The State of Ohio does not provide a basis for review of being placed on 

administrative leave and therefore there are no adequate remedies of law to address the denial of 

his due process rights. 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION 

42 U.S.C. §1983 - 2012 Termination 

166. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

167. Fulmer was at all times relevant to this Complaint the duly appointed Fire Chief 

of the West Licking Joint Fire District and had a property interest in that position as provided for 

by R.C. §505.38. 

168. In 2012, Myers, Van Buren, Fox, Denton, McGrady, Krugh, Emmons, Fishel and 

Hatfield deprived Fulmer of his property interest without due process under color of law in 

violation of the Due Process Clause of the Fomteenth Amendment of the United States 

Comitihttion and 42 U.S.C. §1983. 
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169. These defendants failed to follow the mandated prescriptions for due process as 

set forth in R.C. §§ 505.38 and 733.35, et al. and otherwise deprived the Plaintiff of a fair 

hearing as set forth in the paragraphs above. 

170. Plaintiff also had his property interest improperly terminated through the arbitrary 

and capricious acts of the Defendants, as the court determined there was absolutely no evidence 

to support Fulmer's termination. 

171. The acts of the Defendants, individually and collectively, in tenninating the 

Plaintiff's employment, "shock the conscious" and are offensive to any traditional idea of fair 

play and decency with respect to the tennination of a public employee. 

172. The acts of the Defendants further deprived Plaintiff of his property interests 

pu."Suant to various random and unauthorized acts which any available state remedy would not 

adequately compensate for the losses set forth above. 

173. The post-deprivation remedy provided by statute is wholly inadequate in that it 

oniy permitted Fulmer to retain his job. The District has not compensated him for his economic 

and non-economic losses, including attorney fees. 

174. The conduct of the Defendants violated clearly established statutory and/or 

constitutional rights of which any reasonable person would have known at the time the violation 

by the Defendants occurred. 

175. As a result of the acts, omissions or conduct of the Defendants set forth above} 

Plaintiff is entitled to actual damages, punitive damages, attorney fees and costs of this action. 
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

42 U.S.C. §1983 - 2014 Termination 

176. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

177. Fulmer was at all times relevant to this Complaint the duly appo:inted Fire Chief 

of the West Licking Joint Fire District and had a property interest in that position as provided for 

by R.C. §505.38. 

178. In 2014, Myers, Van Buren, Foor, Denton, McGrady, Fishel, Little and Duckett 

deprived Fulmer of his liberty interest without due process, under color of law in violation of the 

Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and 42 

u.s.c. §1983. 

179. These defendants failed to follow the mandated prescriptions for due process as 

set forth in R.C. §§ 505.38 and 733.35, et al. and otherwise deprived the Plaintiff of a fair 

hearing as s~t forth in the paragraphs above. 

180. During the course of his employment and as part of the termination process, 

Defendants Fishel, Little and Duckett made statements regarding Plaintiff's alleged immorality 

or dishonesty, which were nnttue and these Defendants knew or shol.lld have kn.own that they 

were false. For example, Defendants accused the Plaintiff of placing pornography and sexually 

explicit material on his computer when there was no evidence that he did so. 

181. The Defendants voluntarily disseminated or published these allegations to the 

public knowing that they were false. In fact, Plaintiff requested that bis disciplinary hearing be 

held in executive session. Instead, the Defendants deliberately chose to hold the hearing in 

public where they could make statements to the public and press knowing that they would be 
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disseminated widely. The aim, as reflected in Holthus's letter of September 9, 2013, was to 

harm the reputation of the Plaintiff. 

182. The Defendants made statements in the course of the employee's discharge that 

have seriously damaged his standing and associations in the community and/or that have 

imposed upon him a stigma or other disability that will foreclose his freedom to take advantage 

of other employment opportunities. 

183. Despite the fact that the utterance of the statements by these Defendants was 

injurious to Fulmer's reputation, and that the defamatory statements created or threatened a 

Etigma to his reputation, Defendants Myers, Van Buren, Foor, Denton and McGrady adopted 

these statements and thereafter created a state imposed burden when they terminated Plaintiff's 

employment, depriving him of his liberty interest without sufficient process. The Defendant 

members of the Board of Trustees ratified and adopted, through their actions of tennination, the 

false statements made by Fishel, Duckett and Little. 

184. Fulmer has a liberty interest in his reputation, good name, honor and integrity 

which is protected by the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. Defendant's "sham 

11 earing'' did not constitute an adequate name clearing hearing within the requirements of tlm 

Fourteenth Amendment as it did not provide him with an opportunity to refute the charges based 

upon the hearing panel's bias and the false testimony provided by the Defendants. 

185. Any post-deprivation remedy provided by statute is wholly inadequate in that it 

will only permit Fulmer to retain his job. 

186. The conduct of the Defendants violated clearly established statutory and/or 

constitutional rights of which any reasonable person would have known at the time the violation 

by the Defendants occurred. 
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

42 U.S.C. §1983 - West Licking Joint Fire District 

187. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 15& of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

188. At the time of the suspensions and terminations in 2012 and 2014, Defendants 

Myers, Van Buren, Fox, Foor, Denton, McGrady and Hickin constituted the governing Board of 

Trustees of the Fire District, and as such, constituted the policymakers and those governmental 

officials with final authority to make employment decisions. 

189. The decisions to suspend Fulmer, to terminate Fulmer, and to deprive him of his 

liberty interest constitute policies established by the Fire District by virtue of the actions of the 

Board. 

190. The facts set forth in the preceding paragraphs, including, but not limited to 

Fulmer's two separate suspension and two separate terminations, establish that bis deprivation of 

employment was the result of deliberate indifference or gross negligence on the part of those 

Board members. 

191. Furthermore, actions taken by Krugh, Evans, Fishel, Hatfield, Little and Duckett 

were, to the extent they deprived Fulmer of any constitutional and procedural due process rights, 

e~plicitly or implicitly, authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

192. These actions by all Defendants constitute customs, policies and decisions which 

resulted in the violation ofFulmer's prntected property interest and liberty interest. 

193. The Fire District is therefore directly liable for the violations. 
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194. As a result of the acts, omissions or conduct of the Defendants set forth above, 

Plaintiff is entitled to compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorney fees and costs of this 

action. 

FIFfH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Ohio R.I.C.O. 

i 95. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

196. Defendants are or were, at all times relevant to this Complaint, members affiliated 

directly or indirectly with the West Licking Joint Fire District located i11 Licking County, Ohio. 

197. Defendants constitute an ongoing group of persons associated in fact, and can for 

the plllpose of this Complaint be defined as an "enterprise" pursuant to R.C. §2923.31(C) 

(hereafter referred to as the "Enterprise"). 

198. Defendants, while associated with the Enterprise, conducted or participated in, 

directly or indirectly, the affairs of the Enterprise through a pattern of corrupt or racketeering 

activity, as defined by R.C. §2923.3l(E) and (I)(1)(2)(a)(b) and (c) in violation of R.C. 

§2923.32(A)(l) and (3). 

199. The specific acts constituting corrupt or racketeering activity are set forth above 

in the factual section of this Complaint, include, but are not limited to a violation of the Hobbs 

Act, 18 U.S.C. §1951, and violations of R.C. §2905.l l(A)(S) (extortion), §2921.11 (perjury), 

§2921.12 (tampering \vith evidence), §2913.42 (tampering with records), and §2921 .03 

(intimidation). 
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200. Defendants aided, planned, conspired or agreed that one or more of the 

Defendants would engage in the pattern of conupt activity in violation of R.C. §2923.01 

(conspiracy). 

201. Many of the acts of the Defendants were perfonned with malicious purpose, in 

bad faith, in a reckless or wanton maimer, or with a conscious disregard of the rights of the 

?laintiff. 

202. The Defendants, and particularly the West Licking Joint Fire District, knowingly 

received monetary benefits, by depriving the Plaintiff of his employment, as a result of the 

pattern of corrupt activity set forth in the preceding paragraphs; and used or invested, directly or 

indirectly, part or all of the money in the operation of the Enterprise in violation of R.C. 

§2923.32(A){3). 

203. The acts or omissions of the Defendants arise out of the Plaintiffs employment 

relation.ship with the West Licking Joint Fire District. 

204. Pursuant to R.C. §29~3.34(B)~ Plaintiff is entitled to compensation for the 

damages he has incurred as a result of the Defendant's pattern of corrupt activity. 

205. Pursuant to R.C. §2923.34(C) and (E), Plaintiff is entitled to treble damages of 

any and all actual damages proven. 

206. Pursuant to R.C. §2923.34(G) and (H), Plaintiff is entitled to reasonable attorney 

fees, litigation costs and expenses. 

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Civil Conspiracy 

207. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 
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208. Defendants Myers, Van Buren, Fox, Foor, Denton, McGrady, Hickin, Krugh, 

Emmons, Fishel, Hatfield, Little and Duckett conspired, in combinations of two or more 

individuals, to injure the Plaintiff in his constitutionally protected employment position and 

reputation and, as a result of their joint effort(s), caused actual damages to the Plaintiff by virtue 

ofhis employment terminations. 

209. The actions of the Defendants included violations of 18 U.S.C. §1951, R.C. 

§2923.31, §2923.32, §2905.11, §2921.1, §2921.12, §2913.42, and §2921.03, §2923.01, §2923.34 

and R.C. §2921.45 (interfering with civil rights). 

210. At all relevant times, the individual Defendants acted without a reasonable or 

lawful basis, and with malice, willfully or wantonly, and/or with a conscious disregard of 

Fulmer's rights. 

211. The District is liable for the (willful, wanton or reckless) acts or omissions of its 

employees or agents, as these acts arose out ofFulmer's employment position with the District. 

212. As a result of the act_s~ omissions or conduct of the Defendants set forth above, 

Plaintiff is entitled to actual damages, punitive damages, attorney fees and costs of this action, 

interest, and other relief as this Court deems just. 

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

Spoliation 

213. Plaintiff incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 ofthis 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

214. At the time of Fulmer's suspension in May of 2012, litigation involving Fulmer 

was probable. 
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215. In May of 2012, and at all times thereafter, the individual Defendants knew that 

litigation with Fulmer was probable. 

216. Despite this knowledge, the Defendants, and particularly Emmons, Little and 

Krugh, willfully destroyed evidence which was designed to disrupt Fulmer's case, including the 

defenses to the administrative charges filed against, his public records and sunshine law cases, 

and this action. 

217. The willfol destruction of evidence by the Defendants resulted in the actual 

disruption of the Plaintiff's case. 

218. As a result of the disruption, Fulmer suffered damages proximately caused by the 

willful acts of the Defendants. 

219. The District is responsible for the acts of its employees or agents acting on its 

behalf, as the acts arose as a result ofFulmer's employment with the District. 

220. Fulmer is entitled to compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorney fees, 

interest, costs and other relief as this Court deems just. 

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

C.O.B.R.A. 

221. Plaintiff incorporates the a11egations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 158 of this 

Complaint as though fully rewritten herein. 

222. Following Plaintiff's terminations in 2012 and 2014, Defendant West Licking 

Joint Fire District failed to comply with the provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 

Reconciliation Act, in that it failed to provide the Plaintiff with the required documents and 

information fol1owing his terminations. 
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223. In both instances, Defendant, by and through its agents, was aware of the 

requirements of the Act as COBRA information was requested by Plaintiff. 

224. Defendant West Licking Joint Fire District is liable to the Plaintiff for all health 

care costs and other expenses, including attorney fees, incurred by him following his 

terminations in2012 and 2014. 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff David Fulmer demands: 

1. On his First Cause of Action: Actual damages in an amount in excess of Twenty-

Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); Punitive damages in an amount in excess of Twenty-Five 

Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); attorney fees, costs, interest and other relief as this Court deems 

just. 

2. On bis Second Cause of Action: Actual damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); Punitive damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); attorney fees, costs, interest and other relief as this 

Court deems just. 

3. On his Third Cause of Action: Actual damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); Punitive damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); attorney fees, costs, interest and other relief as this 

Court deems just. 

4. On his Fourth Cause of Action: Actual damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); Punitive damages in an amount in excess of 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00); attorney fees, costs, interest and other relief as this 

Court deems just. 
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JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury of al! issues triable by law. 

Instructions for Service: 

~(lt:: 
BRI Ni.KOPP(0064897) ··--

DAVID J. BETRAS (0030575) 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

The clerk is hereby instructed to serve a copy of this Complaint upon the defendants, by 

certified mail, at the addresses set forth in the caption of this Complaint. 

BY: ~J.{L_ 
BdINP.KOPP(0064B97) 
DAVID J. BETRAS (0030575) 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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